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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

OCTOBER 4, 2023 
PR-2023-089094; GF-2023-104777 

 1102 EAST 2ND STREET, UNITS A AND B/201 AND 205 MEDINA STREET  
PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1900 house, moved onto the rear of the lot in 1949, and a ca. 1888 house, currently used as a duplex. 

ARCHITECTURE 

Unit A is a one-story Folk Victorian-style house with partial-width porch and L-plan. It features intact details of the era, 
including Stick-style brackets at porch supports, 4:4 screened wood windows, traditional cornice returns at gable ends, 
and double entry doors with transoms. Unit B is a one-story shotgun-style house with a partial width porch, decorative 
trim, and a gabled roofline.  

RESEARCH 

The primary building at 1100 East 2nd Street, now known as Unit A, was constructed between 1888 and 1897. The lot at 
the corner of Medina and 2nd Street was used as an auction yard in 1887. The earliest mention of a house on the lot is in 
1888, constructed and occupied by contractor and builder Jonah Van Wie. From 1889 to 1891, the property was occupied 
by a businessman and a clerk. For the next few years, bricklayer and plasterer James E. Polhemus, who was affiliated with 
South Austin property investor Charles Newning, lived and worked at the property. Records of a debt settlement show 
that Polhemus and his wife owned the property at 2nd and Medina along with Newning and mortgage agent R. L. Brown, 
and were required to sell with proceeds going to contractor R. C. Lambie in 1894.1 Polhemus remained in the home until 
after 1895, but by 1897, Charles S. Sinnigson—Lambie’s carpentry foreman—had purchased the home.  

Sinnigson had worked as stage manager and carpenter for both the Millett Opera House and the Hyde Park Pavilion 
before moving to East Austin and working for Lambie.2 He and his wife, Mary Elizabeth, rented out part of their home to 
tenants, including several nurses and a family of stonecutters. Sinnigson, son of local German pioneers, plied his trade as a 
carpenter and cabinetmaker into his seventies. Over the course of his career, he became a prominent Austin builder. After 
Charles Sinnigson’s death in 1934, Mary Elizabeth Sinnigson remained in the home until her own death in 1938.3   

John Nash purchased the lot in 1938, at which time he added onto the main house per City permits. He rented out the main 
house and moved the secondary dwelling, addressed as 205 Medina Street, onto the lot from the West Line neighborhood 
in 1949 for use as a third rental unit. Both buildings were used as rental homes until at least 1959, with tenants including a 
maintenance worker, drivers, clerks, and a pharmacist.  

PROPERTY EVALUATION 

The 2016 East Austin Historic Resource Survey lists both buildings as eligible for local landmark designation and 
individual listing on the National Register of Historic Places. It lists the secondary building, facing Medina Street, as 
eligible for designation as a local landmark. 

Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 
1) The buildings are more than 50 years old. 
2) The buildings appear to retain high to moderate integrity. The rear structure, moved from 401 Paul Street, appears 

outside of its original West Line context, but it was moved to its present location within the 50-year historic period.  
3) Properties must meet two criteria for landmark designation (LDC §25-2-352). Staff has evaluated the properties and 

determined that it meets meet two criteria: 
a. Architecture. The East Austin Historic Resource Survey describes the buildings as good examples of the Folk 

Victorian style. 
b. Historical association. The East Austin Historic Resource Survey notes the property’s association with 

Charles S. Sinnigson, carpenter and builder. It may also be associated with earlier carpenters Van Wie and 
Polhemus, though their associations with the home are much shorter than Sinnigson’s.  

 
1 Austin Daily Statesman (1891-1902); 22 July 1894: 6. 
2 Austin Daily Statesman (1891-1902); 19 Aug 1892: 5 
3 The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 22 Apr 1938: 2.   
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c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield significant data concerning the human 
history or prehistory of the region. 

d. Community value. The property was not evaluated for its ability to possess a unique location, physical 
characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the character, image, or cultural identity of the city, the 
neighborhood, or a particular demographic group. 

e. Landscape feature. The property does not appear to be a significant natural or designed landscape with 
artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Consider initiation of historic zoning per survey recommendations. Should the Commission decide against historic 
zoning, strongly encourage adaptive reuse and rehabilitation, then relocation over demolition, but release the permit upon 
receipt of a City of Austin Documentation Package for each structure.   
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LOCATION MAP 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Photos 
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Demolition permit application, 2023 

Occupancy History 
City Directory Research, August 2023 
1959 1100 A: Lupe Torres, renter 

1100 B: Elphra V. Cox, renter 
205 Medina: Ben Vasquez, renter 

1955 1100A: Wallace E. Griffin, renter – clerk, Gibson Produce 
1100B: Elphra V. and Willie A. Cox, renters 
205 Medina: Vacant 

1952 1100 E. 2nd: Emma Gevers, owner 
Ida Gevers, renter 
205 Medina: Thomas D. and Mildred Nolan, renters – driver, Capital Linen Service 

1949 1100 E. 2nd: Warren U. and Ann Davis, renters – driver  
205 Medina: Roy and Alla Hodge, renters – maintenance man 

1944 1100 E. 2nd: Charles and Minnie Gatlin, renters – salesman, JC Bryant Creamery Co. 
205 Medina: Not listed 

1941 Thomas E. and Corrine Stealy, renters – pharmacist 

1935 Mary E. Sinnigson, owner 
Richard L. and Adeline Whitworth, renters – waiter  

1932 Charles S. and Mary E. Sinnigson, owners 

1929 Charles and Mary Sinnigson, owners – cabinetmaker, Becker Lumber Co.  

1927 Charles and Mary Sinnigson, owners – carpenter  

1924 Charles and Mary Sinnigson, owners – carpenter 
George A. Sinnigson – student, UT 

1922 Charles S. and Mary Sinnigson, owners – carpenter 
George A. Sinnigson – student, UT 

1920 Charles and Mary Sinnigson, owners – carpenter 
George A. Sinnigson – student 
Albert W. Berner, renter - stonecutter 

1918 Charles S. and Mary Sinnigson, owners – carpenter 
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George A. Sinnigson – student 
Albert W. Berner, renter – stonecutter, A. L. Gooch 
George H. Berner, renter 

1916 Charles Sinnigson, owner – carpenter 
George H. Berner, renter 
Miss Nellie G. Cruz, renter – nurse  

1914 Charles Sinnigson, owner – carpenter 
Albert C. Brownlee, renter 

1912 Charles Sinnigson, owner – carpenter 
George H. Berner, renter – retired  
Miss Nellie G. Cruz, renter – nurse 
Miss Gatie Brown, renter – nurse  

1909 Charles Sinnigson, owner – carpenter 
Miss Gatie Brown, renter – nurse 

1906 Charles Sinnigson, owner – carpenter 

1905 Charles Sinnigson, owner – carpenter 
Miss Pernie C. Satterwhite, renter – nurse  

1903 Charles Sinnigson, owner – foreman carpenter, R. C. Lambie 

1900 Charles and Mary Sinnigson, owners – carpenter (per 1900 census) 

1897 Charles Sinnigson, owner – carpenter, R. C. Lambie 

1895 James E. Polhemus – brick contractor and builder 
Note: Charles Sinnigson, carpenter, listed at 401 E. 16th St., corner of Trinity Street. 

1893 James E. Polhemus – brick contractor and builder, shop and residence 1100 E. 2nd at corner of Medina 
Ogden Polhemus—apprentice bricklayer 
Note: Charles Sinnigson, stage manager Millett Opera House and stage carpenter Hyde Park Pavilion, listed at 
401 E. 16th St. 

1891 Jarrett R. Browder – clerk for W.B. Walker, res.1100 E. 2d corner Medina 
J.E. Polhemus, plasterer and contractor, listed in Fairview Park.  

1889-90 Robert F. Holman – Marshall, Holman & Co., res. 1100 E. 2d corner Medina 
Note: Marshall, Holman & Co. is listed as having a “club room” over 601 Congress at the corner of East 6th. 

1887-88 Jonah Van Wie – contractor and builder, res. 1100 E. 2d corner Medina 

 

Historical Information 

       
1900 Sanborn map, 1935 Sanborn map, 1962 Sanborn map 
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The Austin Daily Statesman (1880-1889); 08 Oct 1887: 5. 

MY PARTNER: Presented at Hyde Park Pavilion Last Night Most Successfully. Austin Daily Statesman (1891-1902); 19 Aug 1892: 5 
Austin Daily Statesman (1891-1902); 22 July 1894: 6. 

  
SIDEWALK NOTES. Austin Daily Statesman (1891-1902); 13 May 1898: 2.   

Austin Daily Statesman (1891-1902); 09 Apr 1902: 3 
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DEATHS IN AUSTIN. The Austin Statesman (1902-1915); 03 Mar 1904: 3 

Death of an Old Austin Pionee. The Austin Statesman (1902-1915); 03 Mar 1904: 4.   

  
The Austin American (1914-1973); 25 Feb 1934: 5. 

THE DEAD. The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 02 Aug 1937: 2.    

  
THE DEAD. The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 22 Apr 1938: 2.   
Obituary. The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 16 Dec 1941: 17 
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Austin Naval Officer Is Awarded Air Medal. Rawland, Bettye.  The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 21 Oct 1952: A9.    

 Station Break 'Engraved' On Austinites' TV Screen. The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 16 Apr 1954: 17. 

  
DEATHS AND FUNERALS. The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 28 Dec 1955: 6. 

DEATHS, FUNERALS. The Austin Statesman (1921-1973); 04 Nov 1958: 10.    
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Permits 
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